RFP-25-04-AAA-Meal Delivery Service Provider

Request for Proposal 2025-Meal Delivery Service Provider

Alamo AAA Contracted Services for FY25 – FY26



Procurement Department 2700 NE Loop 410, Suite 101 San Antonio, TX 78217 Voice (210) 362-5200 Fax (210) 225-5937

RFP Release Date:	January 28, 2025 @ 4:00 PM
Deadline to Submit Questions:	February 3, 2025 @ 2:00 PM
Response to Questions Posted:	February 7, 2025 @ 5:00 PM
Proposal Response Deadline:	February 18, 2025, @ 4:00 PM

RFP links: <u>https://aacog.gov/procurement</u> <u>https://www.txsmartbuy.gov/esbd/RFP-25-04-AAA</u>

NOTICE: Prospective proposers who have received this document from a source other than AACOG should immediately contact AACOG and provide their name, company, and email address in order that an addendum to the RFP or other communication can be delivered. Any prospective proposer who fails to provide the agency with this information assumes complete responsibility for complete submission requirements.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART 1.0 – SCOPE OF REQUEST 2	
1.1 - Purpose of Request for Proposal (RFP)	
1.2 - Background Information	
1.3 - Statement of Work	
1.4 - Planning Service Area	6
1.5 - Project Budget	6
1.6 - Authority	7
1.7 - Procurement Standards	
PART 2.0 - SUBMISSION INFORMATION 7	
2.1 - Response Deadline	7
2.2 - Procurement Schedule	7
2.3 - Technical Assistance	7
2.4 - Availability of Request for Proposals	
2.5 - Proprietary Information & Texas Public Information Act	
PART 3.0-GENERAL INFORMATION & ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIRE	
3.1 - Eligible Providers	9
3.2 - Contract Information	
3.3 - Governing Provisions and Limitations	10
3.4 - Administrative Requirement and Limitations	
PART 4.0 – PROPOSAL REVIEW AND SELECTION PROCESS	11
4.1 - Evaluation Process	
4.2 - Proposal Evaluation Criteria	12
4.3 - Proposer's Acceptance of Evaluation Methodology	
4.4 - Procurement Dispute Resolution	
PART 5.0 – PROPOSAL RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS	
5.1 - Proposal Format and Number of Proposals	
5.2 - Proposal Validity Period	
5.2 - Page Limitation	
5.3 - Order of Proposal Contents	
PART 6.0 – PROPOSAL RESPONSE FORMS	
6.1 - Title Page	
6.2 - Table of Contents	17
6.3 - Executive Summary	
6.4 - Proposal Narrative	
6.5 - Certification Sheet	
6.6 - Acknowledgement	
6.7 - Conflict of Interest	
6.8 - Debarment, Suspension6.9 - Non-Discrimination Certification	
6.10 - Certification Regarding Lobbying	
6.11 - Bidder/Vendor List	
Attachments: Response Forms Appendix A: Service Definitions	
Appendix B: Budget	
Appendix D. Dudger	

RFP links: <u>https://aacog.gov/procurement</u> <u>https://www.txsmartbuy.gov/esbd/RFP-25-04-AAA</u>

PART 1.0 – SCOPE OF REQUEST

1.1 PURPOSE OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

The Alamo Area Council of Governments (AACOG) Alamo Area Agency on Aging (Alamo AAA) is requesting proposals to provide meal delivery services authorized under Title III of the Older Americans Act of 1965, as amended, and in accordance with the approved Alamo AAA Area Plan.

1.2 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

A. The Alamo Area Council of Governments

AACOG is a voluntary association of municipal and county governments and special districts located in Bexar County and the surrounding twelve counties. Defined as a political subdivision of the State of Texas, the AACOG was established in 1967 under Chapter 391 of the Local Government Code as a voluntary association of local governments and organizations that serves its members through planning, information, and coordination activities. AACOG serves the Alamo Area/State Planning Region 18, which covers 13 counties and 12,582 square miles. Comprising the area planning region are Atascosa, Bandera, Bexar, Comal, Frio, Gillespie, Guadalupe, Karnes, Kendall, Kerr, Medina, McMullen, and Wilson counties.

B. Purpose

- The purpose of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to identify and engage a qualified meal delivery service contractor to manage and operate priority congregate and home meal delivery services within Guadalupe, Wilson, and Karnes counties. The selected contractor will ensure the accessibility and efficiency of delivery systems for older adults, provide supportive services funded under the Older Americans Act of 1965 (OAA), as amended, and the State of Texas, and contribute to the execution of the Alamo AAA Strategic Plan. Additionally, the contractor will be responsible for funding two staff members dedicated to maintaining senior program operations at the Cibolo Senior Center and the Wilson County Senior Center, ensuring these facilities continue to meet the needs of the communities they serve.
- 2. The AACOG retains the sole and exclusive right to establish funding priorities for all subcontracted services. This includes the discretion to allocate resources to ensure compliance with program objectives, address community needs, and achieve strategic outcomes.

C. Contract Goals & Objectives

The central objectives to be fulfilled through this contract are as follows:

- 1. AACOG is seeking to award contracts to qualified, eligible contractors for the Aging Program services as described in this Request for Proposals (RFP) and as defined in Appendix A.
- 2. The type of services and amounts sought are not to exceed (See Project Budget).
- 3. The supportive services expenses under this contract shall include the employment of two part-time staff members, as outlined below:
 - I. Program Manager, Cibolo Senior Center:

One full- time position with an approximate annual salary of \$22,000.

II. **Program Manager, Wilson County Senior Center**: One part-time position with an approximate annual salary of \$12,000.

D. Implementation of Objectives

1. The objectives for the Alamo AAA contracted services shall be achieved by the meal delivery service contractor upon the approval of the final work plan by AACOG. The final work plan shall be developed in alignment with the Statement of Work outlined in this Request for Proposal.

1.3 STATEMENT OF WORK

A. SERVICE PLAN

- 1. AACOG is designated as the Alamo AAA under contract with the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC). The authority on which this contract is based derives from the OAA, as amended, and its regulations.
- 2. Congress appropriates funds to implement the OAA and apportions those funds to the states. Within Texas, HHSC then allocates the apportioned funds to the AAAs for administration at the local level. HHSC awards these funds based on statistical factors such as population aged 60+ living in rural areas, and income levels of population aged 60+ in each of the Planning Service Areas (PSAs). The PSA for Alamo AAA includes twelve Alamo Counties (Atascosa, Bandera, Comal, Frio, Gillespie, Guadalupe, Karnes, Kendall, Kerr, Medina, McMullen, and Wilson counties).
- 3. Alamo AAA then allocates funds to prioritized programs within the PSA based upon an Area Plan approved by HHSC. The Area Plan identifies prioritized older adults' services. Alamo AAA finally awards a significant portion of funding for those priority services to qualified sub-recipients who then furnish services on behalf of Alamo AAA. We have provided a list of service definitions for these services at Appendix A.
- 4. The Alamo AAA is seeking qualified Bidders to furnish and provide unitized meals for Older Adults. Food services shall include the daily preparation and delivery of hot and/or cold lunches to approximately 300 adults residing in Guadalupe, Wilson, and Karnes counties. The selected Bidder must ensure compliance with all applicable food safety and quality standards. The Alamo AAA reserves the right to modify the scope of services, including the addition of future delivery sites and the adjustment of meal quantities, to address evolving program needs and priorities.
- 5. The Contractor shall be responsible for supplying all labor, materials and equipment necessary for the proper execution and completion of the work, and shall perform all services, as stated in the scope of services or reasonably implied there from and in accordance with contract documents.
- 6. The Contractor shall provide full-time supervision and properly skilled staff to perform the work required under this bid invitation. Unless specified to the contrary, all materials used shall be new and of the best kind and grades specified and all workmanship shall be up to the best recognized standards known to the various trades.
- 7. AACOG reserves the right to terminate or modify this contract at its sole discretion if federal funding supporting the nutrition program is withdrawn. In the event of termination or modification, AACOG shall have no obligation to compensate the contractor for any meals prepared or delivered after the effective date of termination or modification.

B. MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS

- 1. To be qualified, providing and delivering meals must be a primary line of business for the Bidder. Additionally, qualified Bidders must have current meal preparation and delivery service experience. The Alamo AAA shall be the sole judge as to whether Bidder's experience is sufficiently similar to being responsive.
- 2. Bidder must currently have a permanent place of business located within the AACOG planning service area.
- 3. Bidder must have been in business for a minimum of three (3) years and employ qualified personnel to ensure vendor's performance in accordance with all outlined requirements.
- 4. Bidder must hold a current State or local health certificate for their food preparation facility/facilities.

C. CONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS

- 1. Contractor shall be responsible for the following requirements:
- 2. Adhere to Attachment 1. Texas Health and Human Services Appendix III, <u>Appendix III,</u> <u>Target Nutrient Requirements Computer Analysis of Nutrients | Texas Health and Human</u> <u>Services</u>
- 3. PROGRAM INVITATION FOR BIDS (IFB) AND CONTRACT FORMS and all its attached provisions. Contractor must meet State and Local Health Department Inspections and licenses required to prepare and distribute/vend food to the public. Meals types and nutritional requirements may be found at <u>F-1600 Meals</u> | <u>Texas Health and Human Services</u>.

D. PRICING

- 1. All unit costs per meal/item must include all related costs, including but not limited to product, staff, delivery, equipment, supplies and storage.
- 2. The Alamo AAA is reimbursed based upon each meal actually served and not the estimated number of meals to be served. Since the federal reimbursement rate is subject to change each year, rather than bid a fixed dollar amount, the AAA is soliciting bids based on a discount from the actual reimbursement rate established by Texas Health and Human Services.

E. FOOD SPECIFICATIONS

- 1. Component yield must meet the minimum requirement as per <u>F-1600 Meals | Texas Health</u> and Human Services
- 2. All meals in the menu cycle must meet the food specifications and quality standards. All meat and meat products shall have been slaughtered, processed and manufactured in plants inspected under a USDA approved inspection program and bear the appropriate seal. All meat and meat products must be fresh, lean, free from gristle and peppercorns, sound, sanitary and free of objectionable odors or signs of deterioration upon delivery. Meat must not be discolored.

- 3. Milk, white/chocolate is not to contain more than 1% fat or less and shall contain vitamins A and D at the levels specified by the Food and Drug Administration and consistent with State and local standards for such milk. Milk delivered hereunder shall conform to these specifications.
- 4. All food components are required to be fresh, ripe, edible and within the date of expiration upon time of consumption. Bidders must possess and submit with their bid response, a Child Nutrition "CN" label and/or manufacturer's product analysis, specifying the yield of each product's ingredients.
- 5. Sodium Levels for meals (aligns with requirements under USDA NSLP).

F. PACKAGING

- 1. Each meal/lunch must be individually unitized to ensure proper distribution to program participants.
- 2. Individual meals delivered in unit packs must be delivered and stored in containers to maintain the required temperature until service time.
- 3. Containers should be adequately sealed to prevent seating or leaking of any kind.
- 4. Containers should be able to hold ice and contain any liquid caused by melting. Containers used where sweating and leaking occur are considered to be sub-standard and unacceptable.
- 5. Approved packaging for unitized meals will be:
 - a) Individual meal unit with seal-able lids or may be heat sealed. Fiber or recyclable plastic containers wrapped and sealed to prevent crushing or leaking of food onto other food within the container (i.e. ice chest) or leakage within the individual food containers.
 - b) Containers must maintain required temperature until serving time.
 - c) The transport of all cold or hot products must be, at a minimum, in thermo-insulated containers (i.e. ice chests) which have proven to maintain the required temperature more efficiently as well as reduce sweating and leakage.
 - d) All hot meals must be in a sectioned container, with the other meal components, which can be sealed to ensure proper sanitation. All meal entrée components (lunch) must be packaged into one container [i.e. – entrée and vegetable(s)]. Fresh fruit and bread may be packaged and served individually.

G. DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS

- 1. Contractor must ensure that, during time of meal preparation, interim storage, transporting, delivering to site and immediately prior to meal service, the maximum, and minimum required temperatures are maintained as per local Health Department Regulations.
- 2. Meal units must leave the Contractor site in containers that will hold the proper temperature for a minimum four (4) hour window.
- 3. The Contractor must maintain a log documenting the time of departure and meal temperature.

- 4. Contractor will be responsible for completing all documentation required by HHSC for eligibility of meal and meal delivery and will submit monthly to AAA staff to be eligible for reimbursement.
- 5. All congregate and home delivered meal deliveries shall be made between 9:30 a.m. 10:30 a.m.
- 6. The Contractor must have proper transportation to support the time and delivery schedule.
- 7. The Contractor's driver must remain at the delivery site(s) until meals have been inspected by designated personnel.
- 8. Upon food inspection of meals, if drinks do not meet temperature requirement, they will not be accepted, and the AAA will not be charged.

1.4 PLANNING SERVICE AREA

1. The Planning Service Area for this RFP is Alamo Area/State Planning Region 18.

1.5 PROJECT BUDGET

The estimated funds available for the project are not to exceed a total of \$100,000. Proposers planned budget must reflect all operating expenses to be incurred in the performance of this proposal and the level of Federal or State funding requested to support the planned expenditures.

- 1. Proposers must have sufficient financial resources to operate on a reimbursement basis. A three (3) month cash flow is recommended.
- 2. The Alamo AAA requires the selected applicants to submit a comprehensive rate workbook detailing all proposed costs, including unit pricing, overhead, and any other applicable expenses. Additionally, the selected applicants must provide any price, technical, or other revisions resulting from the negotiation process as required by the AAA. Failure to comply with these requirements may result in disqualification from further consideration.

1.6 AUTHORITY

- 1. HHS 45 CFR 75.
- 2. HHS 45 CFR 92.
- 3. HHS 45 CFR 1321.
- 4. HHS 45 CFR 91.
- 5. Texas Uniform Grant Management Standards (UGMS).
- Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Title 26, Part 1, Chapter 213, Subchapter C, Division 3, Rule §213.203

- 7. Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 252
- 8. Texas Government Code, Chapter 2161
- 9. HHSC Area Agency on Aging Policies and Procedures Manual, Chapter F-1000 thru F-1800

1.7 PROCUREMENT STANDARD

It is the policy of AACOG to conduct procurement in a manner that provides for full and open competition. An award will be made only to an organization possessing the qualifications and demonstrated ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of a contract. The services solicited under this RFQ are procured under the Competitive Proposal Method.

PART 2.0 – SUBMISSION INFORMATION

2.1 **RESPONSE DEADLINE**

The Request for Proposals (RFP) will be posted on **January 28**, **2025**. Proposal deadline **February 18**, **2025**, **by 4:00 pm CST**. Official receipt of Proposals submitted will be by entry on a proposal receipt log. A receipt form will be issued upon request. Respondents who mail a proposal will be sent a copy of the receipt form upon request. Proposals may be hand-delivered prior to the stated deadline between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday or mailed to the following address:

AACOG Procurement Department Attn: RFP-25-04-Meal Delivery Service Provider 2700 NE Interstate 410 Loop, Suite 101 San Antonio, TX 78217

Proposals submitted by mail, courier or overnight mail services will be received (Monday through Friday) at the above address. Modifications or amendments to a Proposal must comply with the requirements and response deadline. A respondent may withdraw a Proposal at any time during the procurement process by submitting a written request to the AACOG Procurement Department at the above address.

2.2 PROCUREMENT SCHEDULE

All time noted on the Procurement Schedule (Page 1) is Central Standard Time. Dates posted are subject to change.

2.3 TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE

- 2.3.1 AACOG will accept questions submitted via electronic mail prior to February 3, 2025, 2:00pm
- **2.3.2** An Addendum to the RFP, to include all questions received, will be delivered to all interested parties and included in archived documents at the Electronic State Business Daily website.
- **2.3.3** No other representative of AACOG is allowed to accept or respond to questions related to this solicitation other than:

Debbie Ugarte, Contracts and Procurement Director Alamo Area Council of Governments Procurement Department 2700 NE Interstate 410 Loop, Suite 101

San Antonio, TX 78217

dugarte@aacog.gov

2.3.4 AACOG RFP Secondary Point of Contact:

Isaac Jones III Senior Procurement Analyst

Alamo Area Council of Governments Procurement Department

2700 NE Loop 410, Suite 101

San Antonio, TX 78217

ijones@aacog.gov

- **2.3.5** During the period between the date AACOG issues this RFP and the date of the selection of the Contractors by AACOG, if any, Respondents shall restrict all contact with AACOG and direct all questions regarding this RFP, including questions regarding terms and conditions, only to the individual identified above in Section "Technical Assistance" in the specified manner. Do not contact members of the Board of Directors, other employees of AACOG or any of AACOG's agents or administrators. Contact with any of these prohibited individuals after issuance of this RFP and before selection is made, may result in disqualification of the Respondent. The communications prohibition shall terminate when the contract is executed by the Contractor and AACOG.
- **2.3.6** Prohibited communications include direct contact, discussion, or promotion of any Respondent's Proposal with any member of AACOG's Board of Directors or employees except for communications with AACOG's designated representative as set forth in this RFP and only in the course of inquiries, briefings, interviews, or presentations. This prohibition is intended to create a level playing field for all potential Respondents, to assure that decisions are made in public, and to protect the integrity of the RFP process. Except as provided in the above stated exceptions, the following communications regarding a particular Invitation For Bids, Requests for Proposal, Requests for Qualifications, or other solicitation are prohibited:
- **2.3.7** Communications between a potential Contractor, service provider, bidder, respondent, lobbyist or consultant and any member of AACOG's Board of Directors.
- 2.3.8 Communications between any director and any member of a selection or evaluation committee.
- **2.3.9** Communications between any director and administrator or employee is prohibited.
- 2.4 The communications prohibition shall not apply to the following:
- **2.4.1** Communications with AACOG's purchasing agent specifically named and authorized to conduct and receive such communications under this RFP or upon the request of AACOG, with AACOG's general counsel.
- **2.4.2** Presentations made to the Board of Directors during any duly convened public meeting.
- **2.4.3** Nothing contained herein shall prohibit any person or entity from publicly addressing AACOG's Board of Directors during any duly convened public meeting, in accordance with applicable Board policies, on a matter other than this RFP or in connection with a presentation requested by AACOG's representatives.

2.5 AVAILABILITY OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

The RFP will be posted as noted on Page 1, RFP Links, or at the request of the proposer, by contacting procurement staff at the above phone or e-mail beginning **January 28, 2025**. The RFP is also available at the agency address from 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except for holidays). Any interested party that receives this RFP by means other than directly from AACOG is responsible for notifying AACOG that it has received an RFP package so that when an addendum to this RFP is issued, the information can be provided to all interested parties.

2.6 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

- **2.6.1** Because contracts are awarded by a governmental entity, all responses submitted are subject to release as public information after contracts are executed. If a Respondent believes that its response, or parts of its response, may be exempted from disclosure, the Respondent must specify page-by-page and line-by-line the parts of the response, which it believes, are exempt. In addition, the Respondent must specify which exception(s) are applicable and provide detailed reasons to substantiate the exception(s). Any information that is unmarked will be considered public information and released, if requested under the Public Information Act.
- **2.6.2** The determination of whether information is confidential and not subject to disclosure is the duty of the Texas Office of Attorney General (OAG). AACOG must provide the OAG sufficient information to render an opinion and therefore, vague and general claims to confidentiality by the Respondent are not acceptable. AACOG must comply with the opinions of the OAG. AACOG assumes no responsibility for asserting legal arguments on behalf of any Respondent. Respondents are advised to consult with their legal counsel concerning disclosure issues resulting from this procurement process and to take precautions to safeguard trade secrets and other proprietary information. After completion of the award, these documents will be available for public inspection.

PART 3.0-GENERAL INFORMATION & ANDMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

3.1 ELIGIBLE PROVIDERS

- **3.1.1** AACOG expects to receive proposals from established and knowledgeable entities with demonstrable expertise in the tasks required. The proposer(s) selected for contract will become an approved AACOG vendor and responsible for tasks outlined in the SOW.
- **3.1.2** It is the policy of AACOG to encourage participation by small and historically underutilized businesses (HUBs), as defined in Government Code, Chapter 2161, as Contractors to AACOG. It is the goal of AACOG to include HUBs in at least ten percent (10%) of the total value of contracts awarded annually.
- **3.1.3** To be eligible for consideration: Licensed to do business in the State of Texas.
- **3.1.4** ACOG is prohibited from contracting with any entity debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation. Accordingly, a contract requires Contractors to certify that they are in compliance with the Federal regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, 29 CFR Part 98, Section 98-510, Participant's Responsibilities. The Contractor must certify that to the best of its knowledge and belief that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by a federal department or agency.
- **3.1.5** Respondents must possess the knowledge, experience and expertise, professional judgment and capacity within their organization to perform the services and activities requested under this RFP and meet high standards for public service and fiduciary responsibility.

3.2 CONTRACT INFORMATION

- **3.2.1** TYPE OF CONTRACT: This Request for Proposal may result, assuming a Contractor is selected, and an award made, based on budget based fixed price award.
- **3.2.2** CONTRACT PERIOD: It is anticipated that the initial contract period will be for three (3) years, with an option for two (2) one (1) year extensions, mutually approved annually by the vendor and AACOG Board of Directors. The maximum number of consecutive years that an auditor may provide services will be five (5) years.
- **3.2.3** AACOG reserves the right to terminate a contract at any time based on Contractor performance or noncompliance.
- **3.2.4** ADDITIONAL FUNDING: AACOG reserves the right to extend the contract to include additional tasks in the Proposal response that AACOG deems beneficial to the area.
- **3.2.5** REASSIGNMENT: In the event a Contractor fails to perform as required, AACOG reserves the right to terminate the contract early and assign the contract in whole or in part to a comparably ranked respondent/Proposal obtained through this procurement, subject to successful contract negotiations.
- **3.2.6** Within 30 days written notice by either party if Contractor shall be required to satisfactorily complete all projects in progress at the time notice is giving to.
- **3.2.7** In the event of a breach of this RFP by either party hereto that is not remedied within five (5) working days after delivery of written notice of such breach, the non-breaching party may terminate this RFP by providing ten (10) days written notice to the other party of their intent to terminate this RFP.

3.3 GOVERNING PROVISIONS AND LIMITATIONS

Violation of any of the following provisions may cause a Proposal to be disqualified and rejected from consideration:

- **3.3.1** The Proposal, if accepted, will become the basis for the contract scope of work.
- **3.3.2** Respondents must submit a comprehensive Proposal for all services solicited. Any Proposal that is not comprehensive will be deemed non-responsive.
- **3.3.3** The only purpose of this RFP is to ensure uniform information in the solicitation of Proposals for the procurement of identified services. This RFP is not to be construed as a purchase agreement, contract or as a commitment of any kind; nor does it commit AACOG to pay for costs incurred prior to the execution of a formal contract unless such costs are specifically authorized in writing by AACOG.
- 3.3.4 AACOG reserves the right to accept or reject any or all Proposals received, to

cancel or reissue this RFP in part, or its entirety.

- **3.3.5** AACOG reserves the right to award a contract(s) for any services solicited in this RFP in any quantity AACOG determines is in its best interests.
- **3.3.6** AACOG reserves the right to extend, shorten, increase, or decrease any contract awarded as a result of this RFP.
- **3.3.7** AACOG reserves the right to request additional information, clarification of or explanation for any aspect of a response to this RFP.
- **3.3.8** AACOG reserves the right to waive any minor defect in the procurement process or to correct any error(s) and/or make changes to this solicitation it deems necessary. AACOG will provide notifications of any changes in this RFP to all interested parties having requested or received a copy of this RFP.
- **3.3.9** AACOG reserves the right to negotiate the final terms of all contracts or agreements with selected proposers and any such terms negotiated as a result of this RFP may be renegotiated and/or amended in order to successfully meet the needs of the regional area.
- **3.3.10** AACOG reserves the right to contact any individual, agency, employer, or granting agencies listed in a Proposal, contact others who may have experience and/or knowledge of the respondent's relevant performance and/or qualifications; and to request additional information from all respondents.
- **3.3.11** AACOG reserves the right to conduct on-site reviews of records, systems, procedures, including credit and criminal background checks of any entity selected for funding under this RFP. This may occur either before or after the award of a contract or agreement. Any misrepresentation of the proposer's ability to perform as stated in the RFP response may result in the cancellation of any contract or agreement awarded.
- **3.3.12** AACOG reserves the right to withdraw or reduce the amount of an award or to cancel any contract or agreement resulting from this RFP if adequate funding is not received by AACOG from funding sources or due to legislative changes.
- **3.3.13** Respondents shall not, under penalty of law, offer or provide any gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value to any officer, board member, employee, Proposal evaluator, or agent of AACOG or elected official for purposes of having an influencing effect on this procurement.
- **3.3.14** Respondents shall not attempt in any manner to advocate for, lobby or otherwise attempt to influence ay officer, board member, employee, Proposal evaluator, or agent of AACOG or elected official for purposes of having an influencing effect on this procurement.
- **3.3.15** No officer, board member, employee, Proposal evaluator, or agent of AACOG shall participate in the selection, award, or administration of a contract if a conflict of interest, or potential conflict, is involved.
- **3.3.16** Respondents shall not engage in any activity that will restrict or eliminate competition. Violation of this provision will cause a respondent's Proposal to be disqualified and rejected. This does not preclude joint ventures or subcontracts.
- **3.3.17** The contents of a successful Proposal will become a contractual obligation if selected for the award of a contract. Failure of a respondent to accept this obligation may result in cancellation of an award. No plea of error or mistake shall be available to the successful proposer as a basis for release from proposed services at the stated price/cost. Any damages assessed by AACOG as a result of a successful proposer's failure to contract with AACOG may be recovered from the proposer.
- **3.3.18** A contract with a selected proposer may be withheld, at the sole discretion of AACOG, if issues of contract or questions of non-compliance, questioned/disallowed costs, audit/monitoring findings or legal issues exist, until such issues are satisfactorily resolved.
- **3.3.19** AACOG is exempt by law from paying State Sales Tax and Federal Excise Tax.
- **3.3.20** The contractor shall retain all records for a minimum period of seven (7) y after AACOG makes final payment and all other pending matters are closed. This requirement is to assure fair settlement of disputes or complaints that may arise, as well as to fulfill federal audit requirements. This requirement survives the termination of this RFP for any reason.
- **3.3.21** NON-DISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY: Contractor provides its assurance that it will comply with all requirements of applicable Federal

and State laws that no person providing or receiving services under this contract will be excluded from participation, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination because of race, color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, national origin, age, disability or political affiliation or belief.

3.4 ANDMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENT AND LIMITATIONS

- **3.4.1** Contractor will be required to procure all insurance required by this RFP and to list AACOG as an additional insured on each policy prior to the commencement of any work pursuant to a contract executed as a result of this RFP when applicable (or if funding becomes available). Liability coverage and deductibles must be acceptable to AACOG.
- **3.4.2 INSURACE REQUIREMENTS -** CONTRACTOR will be required to provide proof of general liability and casualty insurance coverage prior to contract execution:
- **3.4.2.1** General Liability: \$1,000,000
- **3.4.2.2** Personal Injury: \$1,000,000
- **3.4.2.3** Property damage: \$100,000
- 3.4.2.4 Automobile Liability: \$500,000 per occurrence
- **3.4.3** Respondents must be able to demonstrate the necessary administrative and fiscal capability necessary to successfully provide required services and to meet the financial accountability requirements of federal grants when applicable (or if funding becomes available).
- **3.4.4** Contractors must provide reports upon demand as may be requested or required by AACOG.
- **3.4.5** Private for-profit corporations submitting a Proposal must include a statement signed by an authorized representative of the corporation authorizing submission of a Proposal.
- **3.4.6** AACOG shall require the Contractor to remove any employee or staff member from the contract who is alleged (accused, arrested, or charged) to have committed a disqualifying offense after the background check performed. The contractor is required to immediately notify AACOG when it becomes aware of the alleged offense to determine if it disqualifies the employee or staff member from continuing to work under the contract.
- **3.4.7** Respondents must possess the knowledge, experience and expertise, professional judgment and capacity within their organization to perform the services and activities.

PART 4.0 – PROPOSAL REVIEW AND SELECTION PROCESS

- 4.1 EVALUATION PROCESS: The evaluation process will consist of:
- **4.1.1** An initial review of responsiveness and eligibility with the criteria specified in the RFP by AACOG personnel.
- **4.1.2** All eligible Proposals will be evaluated and scored by an independent team of reviewers. The proposer's qualifications will be evaluated on specific criteria outlined in Section 4.2 by reviewers using a standardized scoring matrix.

4.2 EVALUATION CRITERIA

- **4.2.1** AACOG will make its selection of a proposer based on demonstrated competence, experience, knowledge, and qualifications as reflected in the criteria set forth below. The responses will be scored by an AACOG evaluation committee.
- **4.2.2** Scoring Criteria, with Percentages: Proposers must achieve an overall score of at least 70 points to be considered for the award of funds. The review and evaluation of proposals shall be based upon the following criteria:

A. Organizational Capacity

- 1. <u>Business Organization:</u> State full name and address of your organization and identify parent company if you are a subsidiary. Specify the branch office or other subordinate element which will perform, or assist in performing, work herein. Indicate whether you operate as a partnership, corporation, or individual. Include the State in which incorporated or licensed to operate.
- 2. <u>System Concept and Solution</u>: Define in detail your understanding of the requirements presented in the Scope of Work of this request for proposal and your system solution. Provide all details as required in the Scope of Work and any additional information you deem necessary to evaluate your knowledge of HHS regulations, target populations and administering aging programs.

35 points

- 3. <u>Project Management Structure:</u> Provide a general explanation and chart which specifies project leadership and reporting responsibilities; and who will interface with the AACOG project management and team personnel. Provide a detailed description of fiscal controls, reporting capabilities and performance accountability protocol. If use of subcontractors is proposed, identify their placement in the primary management structure, and provide internal management description for each subcontractor.
- 4. <u>Personnel:</u> Include names and qualifications of all professional personnel who will be assigned to this project. State the primary work task assigned to each person and the percentage of time each person will devote to this work. Identify key persons by name and title. Provide all resumes.

B. Demonstrated Performance

1. <u>Prior Experience</u>: Describe only relevant corporate experience and individual experience for personnel who will be actively engaged in the project. Do not include corporate experience unless personnel assigned to this project actively participated. Supply the project title, year, and reference name, title, present address, and phone number of principal person for whom prior projects were accomplished.

C. Service Delivery Plan

- 1. <u>Service Delivery Plan:</u> Describes plan design, Nutrition Services, Older Americans Act Assurances, and outreach to targeted populations. Older Americans Act Assurances (Required)
- 2. <u>The Older Americans Act of 1965</u>, as amended, requires assurances that specific objectives will be met by the AAA and its sub-recipients. Please provide a narrative response for how your organization plans to meet each of the following OAA objectives.
- 3. Provide assurances that the agency will set specific objectives for providing services to older individuals with greatest economic need and older individuals with greatest social need. Include specific objectives for providing service to low-income minority individuals and older individuals residing in rural areas. The assurance should be in written narrative form and specific to low-income minority and older individuals residing in rural areas individuals rather than a statement covering both criteria, even if the characteristics of the clients are both low-income minority and reside in rural areas.

D. Budget

20 points o determine the c

- 1. Information described in this section is required from each proposer to determine the cost per delivery. Your method of costing may not contain all the elements identified below but must be enumerated in detail:
 - a. The budget should include separate line items as noted in Appendix B.
 - b. Provide federally audited indirect rates, if applicable
 - c. Agency that approved the rate
 - d. Date the rate was approved
 - e. Personnel. Itemize the following for each category of personnel with separate hourly rates:
 - f. Manager, senior consultant, analyst, subcontractor, etc.
 - g. Estimated hours for each category of personnel
 - h. Rate applied for each category of personnel
 - i. Total personnel cost
 - j. Itemized cost of supplies and materials
 - k. Other itemized direct costs
 - 1. If applicable, general, and administrative burden. Indicate base used, percentage, and total cost relative to this procurement.
 - m. Travel expenses.

n. Printing

TOTAL POSSIBLE POINTS

<u>100 points</u>

Page 13

25 points

20 points

4.3 PROPOSER'S ACCEPTACE OF EVALUATION METHODOLOGY

By submitting a Proposal, Proposer acknowledges:

- **4.3.1** Proposer's acceptance of the Proposal evaluation process
- **4.3.2** The scoring criteria for selection
- **4.3.3** Proposer's recognition that subjective judgments may be generated during evaluation.

4.4 PROCUREMENT DISPUTE RESOLUTION Appeal and Debriefing Process

4.4.1 Appeal Process

4.4.1.1 Proposers not selected for funding may appeal only with respect to any fault or violation of law or regulation regarding the procurement process. Appeals must be filed within <u>ten</u> <u>calendar days</u> of receipt of AACOG notification of final action. Appeals shall be directed to:

Contract and Procurement Director

Alamo Area Council of Governments Procurement Department

2700 NE Interstate 410 Loop, Suite 101 San Antonio, TX 78217

- **4.4.1.2** The appeal must indicate the AACOG action appealed and the violation, which forms the basis for the appeal, and shall be signed by the Proposers organization's authorized representative. Fax and e-mail transmittals will not be accepted. The filing of the appeal must be within the time frame identified. There is no relief accorded appellate for not filing within the published deadlines. Hearings are at the discretion of AACOG and shall be conducted in accordance with existing AACOG procedures.
- **4.4.1.3** Proposers must provide a detailed statement of legal and factual grounds including copies of relevant documents and the form of relief requested.
- **4.4.1.4** Proposers may NOT appeal the scoring and ranking of Proposals, unless substantiated by material or relevant facts.
- **4.4.1.5** Proposers may NOT appeal solely on the belief that their Proposal is superior to the one selected for award.
- **4.4.1.6** Proposers understand that review and action shall be considered final, with no further formalities considered.

4.4.2 Debriefing Process

Proposers not selected by this procurement process, and have elected not to file an appeal, may submit, within 10 days of the receipt of AACOG notification of the procurement decision, a Request for Debriefing to obtain information on the procurement process and how their Proposal or offer was received and ranked. AACOG shall acknowledge receipt of the Request for Debriefing in writing within 10 days of receipt, along with the date and time of the scheduled debriefing. The debriefing shall be scheduled as soon as possible and no later than 10 days from the receipt of the Request for Debriefing. A debriefing is offered as a courtesy to any bidder who is not selected for funding. The purpose of the debriefing is to promote the exchange of information, explain the Proposal evaluation system, and help unsuccessful bidders understand why they were not selected.

PART 5.0 – PROPOSAL RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS

5.1 PROPOSAL FORMAT AND NUMBER OF PROPOSALS

5.1.1 NUMBER OF COPIES

Respondents must submit three (3) exact copies of the Proposals. Finally, one (1) electronic copy sent to the <u>procurement@aacog.com</u> and <u>ijones@aacog.com</u> with the email subject line to include **<u>RFP Submission: RFP-25-04-AAA- Meal Delivery Service Provider</u>**. Copies may be submitted in a 9 x 12 paper folder or envelope, clipped or stapled in the upper left-hand corner. Any submission lacking the required number of Proposals maybe ruled non- responsive and may not be considered under this procurement. Any differences between the original and the copies are the liability of the respondent.

5.2 PROPOSAL FORMAT

- 5.2.1 Proposals must be typed, single-spaced, and submitted on $8\frac{1}{2} \times 11$ -inch plain white paper.
- **5.2.2** Please do not use less than a 10-point font.
- 5.2.3 Each page of the Proposal, except for the coversheet, must be sequentially numbered,

including attachments.

- 5.2.4 Proposals must contain all required elements in the order prescribed.
- **5.2.5** Proposals that do not conform to this requirement may be considered non-responsive and excluded from consideration under this procurement.

5.3 PROPOSAL VALIDITY PERIOD

Each Proposal will remain valid for AACOG's acceptance for a minimum of thirty (30) days after the submittal deadline, to allow for evaluation, selection and Board action.

5.4 PAGE LIMITATION

Proposers are asked to keep responses brief, concise and to the point, with maximum 3-page limit for the Executive Summary and Proposal Narrative.

5.5 ORDER OF PROPOSAL CONTENTS

Proposals must follow the format below. All items must be clearly labeled and in the exact order shown below. Compile the Proposal in the following order:

- 5.5.1 Proposal Title Page- <u>This must be the very first page of the application.</u>
- 5.5.2 Table of Contents
- **5.5.3** Executive Summary (maximum 1-page limit)
- **5.5.4** Proposal Narrative (please refer to criteria in section 6.4 for order of narrative; maximum 5-page limit not including attachments)
- 5.5.5 Certification Sheet
- 5.5.6 Acknowledgement Form
- 5.5.7 Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
- 5.5.8 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion
- 5.5.9 Non-Discrimination Certification
- 5.5.10 Certification Regarding Lobbying
- 5.5.11 Request to be added to AACOG Bidder's/Contractor List

PART 6.0 – PROPOSAL RESPONSE FORMS

6.1 PROPOSAL TITLE PAGE

Each Proposal must be accompanied by a complete Proposal title page. Respondents must designate a contact person responsible for all communications concerning the Proposal and notification of award. Respondents must also designate a person with documented signatory authority and for contract negotiations.

6.2 TABLE OF CONTENTS

Each Proposal must have a Table of Contents that lists each item of the Proposal, including attachments, with corresponding page numbers. Clearly identify the material by section and page number.

6.3 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Provide a summary highlighting your organization's history, qualifications and experience; overall approach to delivering the services solicited in this RFP; and any unique or innovative aspects of your Proposal. Briefly state the proposer's understanding of the service to be provided and make a positive commitment to perform the work in a timely manner.

6.4 **PROPOSAL NARRATIVE**

Business information, address, email, point of contact names, phone numbers, cell numbers, fax number, business history information, business experience information.

- 6.5 **CERTIFICATION SHEET** (complete and sign form)
- 6.6 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM (complete and sign form)
- 6.7 CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE (complete and sign form)

If a conflict exists. You may review the Agency's current Board of Directors at <u>https://aacog.gov/board-members-committees</u>

- **6.8 CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT** (complete and sign form)
- 6.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION CERTIFICATION (complete and sign form)
- 6.10 CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING (complete and sign form)
- 6.11 REQUEST TO BE ADDED TO BIDDER'S/CONTRACTOR'S LIST



P R O PO SA L TITLE PAGE Alamo AAA Contracted Services for FY24 – FY26

Legal Name of Proposing Entity	
Name of Owner/Director of Entity	
Title	
Mailing Address	
Physical Address (If different than mailing)	
Telephone Number	
Fax Number	
E-mail Address	
Contract Signatory Authority & Title	
Federal Tax ID Number	
Historically Under-Utilized Business? If "yes", attach copy of current certification.	□ Yes □ No
Legal/Tax Status of Organization	□ Corporation □ Sole Proprietor □ Partnership □ Other (Specify)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PROPOSAL NARRATIVE

CERTIFICATION SHEET

All specifications and terms and conditions of the RFP have been read.

Our Company accepts the specifications and conditions unless otherwise accepted in writing to the Executive Director, Alamo Area Council of Governments (AACOG).

Company Name:			
Mailing Address:			
City: State	Zip Code		
Phone:	Fax:		
Web			
Site:			
Email			
Name of Representative authorized to sign for bidder:			
(Print name)	(Signature)		

- (a) Does your "residence state" require bidders whose principal place of business is in Texas to underbid bidders whose residence state is the same as yours by a prescribed amount or percentage to receive a comparable contract? "Residence State" is defined as the state in which the principal place of business is located. YES NO
- (b) What is that amount or percentage?

I certify that the above information is correct:

Name	
Position	
Signature	
Date	

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

Having carefully examined the terms and conditions and specifications within this RFP document, the undersigned Proposer's Agent hereby proposes and agrees to furnish the proposed product(s)/service(s) in strict compliance with the specifications as quoted.

The Proposer affirms that, to the best of his knowledge, the response has been arrived at independently and is submitted without collusion with anyone to obtain information or gain any favoritism that would in any way limit competition or give them an unfair advantage over other bidders in the award of this RFP.

The Proposer affirms that he/she has not participated in any act of favoritism, gratuity, or inside dealings with any member of the staff of AACOG or its Board of Directors.

Company Name:
President/Designee:
Position:
Signature:
Date:

CONFLICT OF INTEREST (QUESTIONNAIRE
-------------------------------	---------------

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 1491, 80 th Leg., Regular	OFFICE		
Session.			
This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176, Local Government Code by a person who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001 (1-a) with a local governmental entity and the person meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).	Date Received		
By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local government entity not later than the 7 th business day after the date the person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. <i>See</i> Section 176.006, Local Government Code.			
1.			
Name of person who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.			
2. Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.			
(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7 th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or			
3. Name of local government office with whom filer has employment or business relationship.			
This section (item 3 including subparts A, B, C & D) must be completed for each officer with whom the filer has an employment or other business relationship as defined by Section 176.001 (1-a), Local Government Code. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.			
A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from the filer of the questionnaire?			
Yes No			
B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the direction of the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local government entity?			
Yes No			
C. Is the filer of this questionnaire employed by a corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?			
Yes No			
D. Describe each employment or business relationship with the local government office	e named in this section.		
4.			
Signature of person doing business with governmental entity	Date		

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR CONTRACTS AND GRANTS

NAME OF INDIVIDUAL, AGENCY, BUSINESS OR ORGANIZATION		Doing business as (DBA), if applicable:	
ADDRESS	Applicable Procurement or Solicitation #, if any:		Federal Employer Tax Identification #:
READ CAREFULLY BEFORE SIGNING THIS CERTIFICATION. Federal regulations require contractors, bidders, and subgrantees to sign and abide by the terms of this certification, without modification, in order to participate in certain transactions directly or indirectly involving federal funds.			

- 1. By signing and submitting this certification, the prospective vendor/grantee is attesting/acknowledging the representations set out below.
- 2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which the Alamo Area Council of Governments (AACOG) will rely on when this transaction is entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective vendor/grantee knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to Federal or State departments or funding agency(s), AACOG may pursue on its own available remedies, including contract termination, suspension and debarment.
- 3. The prospective vendor/grantee shall provide immediate written notice to AACOG, Executive Director, 2700 NE Loop 410, Suite 101, San Antonio, TX 78217, if at any time it learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
- 4. The terms "covered contract", "debarred", "suspended", "ineligible", "participant", "person", "principal", "proposal", and "voluntarily excluded", as used in this certification, have meanings based upon materials in the Definitions and Coverage sections of federal rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person to which this proposal or contract is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of this regulation.
- 5. The prospective vendor/grantee agrees, by submitting this certification, that should the proposed contract/grant be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower-tier-covered transaction or subcontract with a person or entity that is proposed for debarment, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, unless pre-authorized by the appropriate federal or state department or agency, or by AACOG.

Do you have or do you anticipate having sub-vendors/sub-grantees under this proposed agreement? Yes No

- 6. The prospective vendor/grantee further agrees by submitting this certification, that it will include this certification titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion for Contracts and Grants," without modification, in all lower-tier covered transactions and sub-contracts and in all solicitations for lower-tier covered transactions and sub-contracts.
- 7. A vendor/grantee may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant that it is not proposed for debarment, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. Each vendor/grantee is required to check the list of parties excluded from Federal and State Procurement and Non-procurement Programs. AACOG checks this list for all parties to which it provides funds that are derived directly or indirectly from the Federal Government.
- 8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require the establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this certification document. Participants are not required to have knowledge and information exceeding that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business activity.
- 9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a transaction knowingly enters into a lower-tier transaction or contract with a person who is proposed for debarment, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, AACOG or its applicable funding agency(s) may pursue available remedies, including contract termination, suspension and/or debarment.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR CONTRACTS AND GRANTS

Check the statement that applies to the potential vendor/grantee:

- 1. The prospective vendor/grantee certifies by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its principals:
- (a) Is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded by any Federal or State department or agency; and
- (b) Have, within a three-year period preceding this certification, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for fraud; committed a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract; violated Federal or State antitrust statutes; committed embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or inappropriate destruction of records; or received stolen property; and
- (c) Is presently indicted for or otherwise charged by a government entity (Federal, State, or local) with the commission of any of the offenses enumerated in the preceding paragraph (b) of this certification; and
- (d) Have, within a three-year period preceding this certification, had one or more contracts or transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

2. The potential vendor/grantee is unable to certify one or more of the terms in this certification. In this instance, the potential vendor/grantee must attach a signed and dated explanation for each of the above terms, 1(a) through 1(d), to which it cannot certify.

Signature of Authorized	Printed/Typed Name & Title of Authorized
Representative	Representative

Date		
Dute.	•	

NON-DISCRIMINATION CERTIFICATION

The Contractor has agreed to comply with:

- Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 USC §2000d), which prohibits employment discrimination based on race, color or national origin; 45 CFR 80
- Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 USC §794) which prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals with disability in, (1) Programs and activities receiving financial assistance from HHS, 45 CFR 84, (2) Notice of exercise of authority under regarding recipients with fewer than fifteen employees, 45 CFR 84.52(d)(2), (3) Admission or treatment against substance abusers suffering from medical conditions 45 CFR 84.53, and (4) Programs or activities conducted by HHS 45 CFR 85;
- 3. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (20 USC §1681) prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex (gender) in Federally Assisted Education Programs 45 CFR 86
- 4. The Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1975, as amended (42 USC §6101), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in (1) Programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance 45 CFR 90; and (2) Programs or services receiving HHS financial assistance 45 CFR 91.
- 5. Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, 28 CFR Part 35.

NAME OF POTENTIAL	
VENDOR/GRANTEE:	

Signature of Authorized	Printed/Typed Name & Title of Authorized
Representative	Representative

Date:

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all meal delivery service contractor shall certify and disclose accordingly. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

Statement for Loan Guarantees and Loan Insurance

The undersigned states, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

If any funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this commitment providing for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, ``Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. Submission of this statement is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required statement shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

Signature _____

Title_____

Organization _____



AACOG is an equal opportunity agency within the meaning and spirt of the law and does not discriminate on the basis of race, age, color, sex (including sexual orientation and gender identity), disability, national origin, or religion. All contractors and vendors are required to comply with AACOG's EEO policies and/or provide adequate notification that they comply with applicable EEO laws

AACOG requires all vendors interested in conducting business with the agency to complete a "Request to be added to Bidder/ Vender List" packet prior to being eligible to receive opportunities to bid for agency projects.

In addition, AACOG has a centralized purchasing function and requires that a purchase order number be issued and authorized before any order is processed. The contact for Purchase Order numbers is the Procurement Department, (210)362-5200, procurement@aacog.com.

NOTE: AACOG programs are on a cost reimbursement from the funding sources. AACOG will bill the funding source for purchases subsequent to receipt of goods or services and invoices. Invoices are required for all purchases. Payment will be forwarded to the vendor upon reimbursement from the funding source. Vendors should note that this process may take sixty (60) to ninety (90) days for payment to be processed. Contact for the status of payments is Accounts Payable at (210)362-5280.

RETURN THIS FORM TO:



Alamo Area Council of Governments 2700 NE Loop 410, Suite 101 San Antonio, TX 78217 ATTN: Procurement Department Phone: (210)362-5200 Email: procurement@aacog.com

I, _____, hereby attest that I have read and understand the above terms for conducting business with the Alamo Area Council of Governments.

Company Name:
Send Payment(s) to- Address:
City/ State/ ZIP code:
Telephone Number:
Fax Number:
Website Address:
Email Address:
Representative:



Please list the type of products/ services you provide and attach any catalogs/ brochures/ samples. Use

this list below to describe your products/ services *required*:

	Office Supplies Office Furniture Copier Paper/ Specialty Paper Computers Computer Supplies Computer Software Copier Machines (and supplies) Audio/ Visual Duplication Audio/ Visual Equipment Data & Phone Cabling Other:		General Contractor Weatherization Contractor Aging Contractor Psychological Services Outreach Items Printing Services Security Detail Criminal Justice Supplies Consultant () Vehicle Repairs
Please as	ssist us by completing the following	;:	
1.	Type of Request:		
	New Vendor	Change of Address	Updated Information
2.	Ownership:		
	Sole Proprietorship	artnership	Corporation
	Governmental Agency	🗌 *Non- Profit	Other
3.	 Tax Identification Number:		
	DUNS Number, if applicable:		
4.	Have you done business with AACOG in the past?		
	Yes No		
5.	Is your business currently certified with the Stat of Texas Centralized Master Bidder's List? <u>https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/vendor/cmbl/</u>		
	Yes No		
	Please return confirmation of you	ar CMBL certification with th	nis vendor application
6.	Is your business currently certified as a HUB with the State of Texas? https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/vendor/hub/		
	Yes No	N/A	
7.	Is your business currently certified	as a HUB outside the State of	f Texas?
	Yes No	If yes, what is the name	e of the State?



REQUEST TO BE ADDED TO BIDDER/ VENDOR LIST

- 8. If YES to either question 6 or 7, enter Historically Underutilized Business (HUB), ethnicity, and gender status, if applicable:
 - Asian Pacific American (AS)
 Hispanic Americans (HI)
 American Woman (WO)
 - Black American (BL)
 Native American (AI)
 Male (M)/ Female (F): _____
- 9. If applicable, please note if your Texas- based Small, Minority, and/or Women- Owned Business Enterprise (SMWBE) is certified with any of the organizations listed below:

Please return confirmation of this certification with this vendor application

*If you hold certification with any of the entities noted above, you may qualify to automatically receive HUB Certification with the State of Texas. Please contact TPASS's Statewide HUB Program at (888)863-5881 for further information.

10. Is your principal place of business in the State of Texas?

No

Yes		No
-----	--	----

11. Is your organization delinquent on State of Texas Franchise taxes?

Yes	No
-----	----

12. Are you or anyone in your organization related to an AACOG employee or a member of AACOG's governing board?

Yes	
-----	--

If YES, list AACOG employee or Board member's name and relationship:

Mama	
INALLO	

Relationship:

13. Are you or anyone in your organization a former Workforce Solutions- Alamo employee and/ or board member?

Yes No



Alamo Area Council of Governments Accounts Payable Direct Deposit (ACH) Request

Supplier/ Vendor Name:				
Address, City, State, & Zip:				
Day- Time Contact Phone:				
E-Mail Address:				
Financial Institution:				
Bank Account Number:				
Routing Number:				

Must provide all numbers required for ACH deposit

PLEASE NOTE THE FOLLOWING

- The first payment after requesting direct deposit <u>will not</u> be deposited into your account. To ensure
 accuracy of the first deposit a pre-note will be implemented and an actual check will be mailed to you.
- Once a successful pre-note has been established all future payments will be directly deposited into your account.
- Only one bank account may be used per Supplier/ Vendor
- Please contact Accounting Department at (210) 362-5200 with any questions. I hereby authorize Alamo Area of Governments to initiate credit entries and, if necessary, debit entries, and adjustments for any credits entries in error to our account as shown above with the listed financial institution, and credit and/ or debit the same to the accounted indicated above. I certify that the depository information listed above is accurate.

Signature:	
Date:	



		T OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE	FORM CIQ	
-		onnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 1491, 80 th ar Session.	OFFICE USE ONLY	
This que	estion	naire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176, Local Government rson who has the meets requirements under Section1 76.006(a).	Date Received	
By law a governn	this q nent e	uestionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local ntity not later than the 7 th business day after the date the person becomes s that require the statement to be file.		
		mits an offense if the person violated Section 176.006. Local Government ensive under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.		
1.	Nar	ne of person who has a business relationship with local governmental entity:	-	
2.		Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire		
2.				
	tl	The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the a nan the 7 th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becc	mes incomplete or inaccurate.)	
3.	Nar	ne of local government office with whom filer has employment or business r	elationship.	
	This section (item 3 including subparts A, B, C, & D) must be completed for each officer with whom the filer has an employment or other business relationship as defined by Section 176.001 (1-a). Local Government Code. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.			
	A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from the filer of the questionnaire?			
		Yes No		
	B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive or likely to receive taxable income, other that investment income, from the filer of the questionnaire?			
		Yes No		
	C. Is the filer of this questionnaire employed by a corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?			
		Yes No		
	D.	Describe each employment or business relationship with the local governm	ent office named in this section.	
		0		
		0		
		0 0		
4.				
Sig	gnatur	e of person doing business with governmental entity	Date	



orm W-9 Request for New. Documber 2014) Incontinent of the Themuny Itierral Flavious Sarvice			er Taxpayer er and Certification	Give Form to the requester. Do no send to the IRS.	
1	Nama jas shown on yo	ur income tax return). Name is required on this line; o	to not leave this line blank.		
	Business rame/disrege	inded untity name, if different from above			
Check appropriate box for federal tax classification; check only one of the Individual/sole proprietor or Corporation Scorpore Strigts-member LLC Limited lability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, 1 Note. For a single-member LLC that is disregarded, do not check LLC; the tax classification of the single-member owner. Other (see instructions) >			kon	4 Examptions (codes apply only to certain entities, not individuals; see instructors on page 3): Examption from FATCA reporting code (if any)	
5 0	Other (see instruction			physics in accounts matching inducts the U.S.	
Specific	Address (number, stree	el, and apl. or sulle no.)	Roquee	ter's name a	and address (optional)
8	City, statia, and 23P coo	to .			
_	List account number(s)	hara (optional)			
Part I	Taxpaver	dentification Number (TIN)			
N on pa	t is your employer id age 0.	, or disregarded entity, see the Part I instructio entitication number (EIN). If you do not have a s than one name, see the instructions for line to enter.	number, see How to get a	or Employer	Identification number
art II	Certificatio	n			
The rule is a minimum of the rule of the r	naities of perjury, I c umber shown on this of subject to backup	ertity that: form is my correct taxpayer identification nur withholding because: (a) I am exempt from b	ackup withholding, or (b) I have	not been r	notified by the Internal Revenue
I am n Servic no lon I am a The FA ertifications arest p	raities of perjury, I c umber shown on this of subject to backup e (IRS) that I am sub ger subject to backu U.S. citizen or other ITCA code(s) entened tion Instructions. Yi you have tailed to re aid, acquisition or at	ertify that: form is my correct taxpayer identification nur withholding because: (a) I am exempt from b ject to backup withholding as a result of a faile p withholding; and I U.S. person (defined below); and I on this form (If any) indicating that I am exem ou must cross out item 2 above if you have be port all interest and dividends on your tax retu andorment of secured property, cancellation	ackup withholding, or (b) I have the to report all interest or divid pt from FATCA reporting is con en notified by the IRS that you m. For real estate transactions, of debt, contributions to an ind	not been r ends, or (c) mect. are current item 2 doo	notified by the internal Revenue the IRS has notified me that I a by subject to backup withholdin is not apply. For mortgage rement arrangement (IRA), and
I am n Servic no ion I am a The FA ertificat cause arest p nerally, tructio	raities of perjury, I c umber shown on this of subject to backup e (IRS) that I am sub ger subject to backu U.S. citizen or other ITCA code(s) entend tion Instructions. Yi you have failed to re aid, acquisition or at , payments other tha ns on page 3.	ertity that: form is my correct taxpayer identification num withholding because: (a) I am exempt from b ject to backup withholding as a result of a fail p withholding; and I U.S. person (defined below); and I on this form (If any) indicating that I am exem our must cross out item 2 above If you have be port all interest and dividends on your fax refu	ackup withholding, or (b) I have the to report all interest or divid pt from FATCA reporting is con en notified by the IRS that you m. For real estate transactions, of debt, contributions to an ind	not been r ends, or (c) mect. are current item 2 doo	notified by the internal Revenue the IRS has notified me that I a by subject to backup withholdin is not apply. For mortgage rement arrangement (IRA), and
I am n Servic no lon I am a The FA ertificat cause arest p nerally.	naities of perjury, I c umber shown on this of subject to backup e (IRS) that I am sub ger subject to backu U.S. citizen or other ITCA code(s) entend tion instructions. Ye you have tailed to re aid, acquisition or at payments other tha	ertify that: form is my correct taxpayer identification nur withholding because: (a) I am exempt from b ject to backup withholding as a result of a faile p withholding; and I U.S. person (defined below); and I on this form (If any) indicating that I am exem ou must cross out item 2 above if you have be port all interest and dividends on your tax retu andorment of secured property, cancellation	ackup withholding, or (b) I have the to report all interest or divid pt from FATCA reporting is con en notified by the IRS that you m. For real estate transactions, of debt, contributions to an ind	not been r ends, or (c) mect. are current item 2 doo	notified by the internal Revenue the IRS has notified me that is by subject to backup withholdin es not apply. For mortgage rement arrangement (IRA), and
der pe The ni I am n Servic no ion I am a The FA etifical cause erest p nerally, tructio gn ere	railies of perjury, I c umber shown on this of subject to backup e (IRS) that I am sub ger subject to backu U.S. citizen or other ITCA code(s) entenic tion Instructions. Yi you have tailed to re- alid, acquisition or at payments other than ns on page 3. Signature of U.S. person I- rai Instruction	ertity that: from is my correct taxpayer identification num withholding because: (a) I am exempt from b ject to backup withholding as a result of a faile p withholding; and t U.S. person (defined below); and d on this form (if any) indicating that I am exem our must cross out them 2 above if you have be port all interest and dividends, you are not required in interest and dividends, you are not required	ackup withholding, or (b) I have the to report all interest or divid pt from FATCA reporting is con- en notified by the IRS that you m. For real estate transactions, of debt, contributions to an indi- to sign the certification, but you Date ► • Form 1088 (home mortgage in (tuttion)	not been r ends, or (c) rect. are current Item 2 doo tvidual rets u must pro-	notified by the internal Revenue the IRS has notified me that I is by subject to backup withholdin es not apply. For mortgage rement arrangement (IRA), and
der pe The ni I am n Servic no ion I am a the FA dufical srest p herally, tructio gn are Eneri tion rat	raities of perjury, I c umber shown on this of subject to backup e (IRS) that I am sub ger subject to backu U.S. citizan or other ITCA code(s) entend tion instructions. Yi you have failed to re add, acquisition or at payments other tha ns on page 3. Bigrature of U.S. person >	ertify that: form is my correct taxpayer identification num- withinoiding because: (a) I am exempt from b- ject to backup withinoiding as a result of a faile p withinoiding; and r U.S. person (defined below); and t on this form (If any) indicating that I am exem- ou must cross out item 2 above if you have be port all interest and dividends on your tax refu- oundorment of secured property, cancellation in interest and dividends, you are not required TS mal Revonue Code unless otherwise noted. In about developments affucting Form W-9 (such	ackup withholding, or (b) I have the to report all interest or divid pt from FATCA reporting is con- en notified by the IRS that you m. For real estate transactions, of debt, contributions to an ind to sign the certification, but you Date + • Form 1088 (home mortgage in	not been r ends, or (c) rect. are current Item 2 dos Ividual reti u must pro	notified by the internal Revenue the IRS has notified me that i by subject to backup withholdin es not apply. For mortgage rement arrangement (IRA), and wide your correct TIN. See the 5-II (student loan interest), 1085-T
der pe The ra I am n Servic Servic no ion I am a The FA cause arest p nerally, structio gn are eneri don ral ture der kognation	railies of perjury, I c umber shown on this of subject to backup e (IRS) that I am sub ger subject to backu U.S. citizen or other TCA code(s) entend tion instructions. Yi you have tailed to re aid, acquisition or at payments other that and acquisition or at Disperture of U.S. person > Tal Instruction tances are to the inter-	ertify that: form is my correct taxpayer identification num withihoiding because: (a) I am exempt from b ject to backup withihoiding as a result of a faile p withihoiding; and r U.S. person (defined below); and t on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt ou must cross out item 2 above if you have be port all interest and dividends on your tax retur- bandomment of secured property, cancellation in interest and dividends, you are not required mail Revonue Code unless otherwise noted.	ackup withholding, or (b) I have are to report all interest or divid pt from FATCA reporting is con- en notified by the IRS that you m. For real estate transactions, of debt, contributions to an ind- to sign the certification, but you Data ► • Form 1008 (home mortgage in (buttor)) • Form 1008-C (canceled debt), • Form 1008-A (acquisition or at	not been r ends, or (c) rect. are current litem 2 do ividual reti u must pro	notified by the internal Revenue the IRS has notified me that is the IRS has notified me that is ty subject to backup withholdin as not apply. For mortgage rement arrangement (IRA), and wide your correct TIN. See the 5-II (student icen interest), 1095-T
der per The rich and no Service no lon i am a The FA rtifical cause merally tructio gn erest pherally tructio gn erest pherally tructio gn erest pherally tructio gn erest pherally tructio gn erest pherally tructio	railies of perjury, I c umber shown on this of subject to backup e (IRS) that I am sub ger subject to backu U.S. citizen or other TCA code(s) entend tion Instructions. Yi you have failed to re- aid, acquisition or at , payments other tha- ns on page 3. Bigrenture of U.S. person > rail Instruction transces are to the inter relegements, informatio on anacted after we re- te of Form all or entity from W-Br to your social security N), adoption tappage	ertify that: form is my correct taxpayer identification num- withinoiding because: (a) I am exempt from b- ject to backup withinoiding as a result of a faile p withinoiding; and r U.S. person (defined below); and t on this form (If any) indicating that I am exem- ou must cross out item 2 above if you have be port all interest and dividends on your tax refu- oundorment of secured property, cancellation in interest and dividends, you are not required TS mal Revonue Code unless otherwise noted. In about developments affucting Form W-9 (such	ackup withholding, or (b) I have are to report all interest or divid pt from FATCA reporting is cor- en notified by the IRS that you m. For real estate transactions, of debt, contributions to an ind to sign the certification, but you Data > • Form 1008-C (canceled debt) • Form	not been r ends, or (c) nect. are current ltern 2 doo tvidual rets u must pro- torust, 1094 donust, 1094 donu	notified by the internal Revenue the IRS has notified me that is the IRS has notified me that is ty subject to backup withholdin es not apply. For mortgage rement arrangement (IPA), and vide your correct TIN. See the 5-Li (student loan interest), 1096-T t of secured property) on (including a resident alian), to aster with a TIN, you might be subje withholding? on page 2. moct (or you are watting for a number
der pe The n: I am n Servic no ion I am a The FA thinka srest p serest p ser	railies of perjury, I c umber shown on this of subject to backup e (IRS) that I am sub ger subject to backu U.S. citizen or other ITCA code(s) entened tion instructions. Yi you have tailed to rail aid, acquisition or at aid, acquisition or at payments other than rs on page 3. Segments of U.S. person P- rai Instruction tanacces are to the Infe relegements. Information on discided after we rail to be IRE must obtain yo to your social security Na, adoption tappayer on rumber (EM), to rep ar amount reportable o lads, but are not imited	ertify that: I form is my correct taxpayer identification num withihoiding because: (a) I am exempt from b ject to backup withihoiding as a result of a faile p withihoiding; and r U.S. person (defined below); and I on this form (if any) indicating that I am exem- our must cross out item 2 above if you have be port all interest and dividends on your tar refu- bandomment of secured property, cancellation in interest and dividends, you are not required mal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted. In about developments affecting Form W-9 (such asset) is at www.rs.gov/rw9. I secured to file an information sur comuct taxpayer identification number (TH) number (SSH), individual tapping distribution for on an information number (TH) number (SSH), individual tapping distribution for on an information number (TH) number (SSH), individual tapping distribution for on an information number (TH) number (SSH), individual tapping distribution for on an information number (TH) number (SSH), individual tapping distribution for on an information number (CHH) is at the section of the section of the mattern for the televelop.	ackup withholding, or (b) I have are to report all interest or divid pt from FATCA reporting is con- en notified by the IRS that you m. For real estate transactions, of debt, contributions to an ind- to sign the certification, but you Date > • Form 1088 (home mortgage in (batron) • Form 1088-C (canceled debt) • Form 1088-C (canceled d	not been r ends, or (c) rect. are current item 2 doi item 3 doi item 3 doi item 3 doi item 3 doi item 3 doi it	notified by the internal Revenue) the IRS has notified me that I is by subject to backup withholdin is not apply. For mortgage rement arrangement (IRA), and vide your correct TIN. See the 5-Li (student loan interest), 1095-T t of secured property) on (including a rasident alian), to aster with a TM, you might be subje withholding? on page 2. mod (or you are waiting for a numbe up withholding, or
der pe The rx I am n Servic no lon I am a The FA thinks serest p serest p se	railies of perjury, I c umber shown on this of subject to backup e (IRS) that I am sub ger subject to backup II.S. citizen or other TCA code(s) entened tion instructions. Yi you have tailed to re- aid, acquisition or at payments other than to an page 3. Biguesture of U.S. person I- taincas are to the Infor- rel Instruction tanacas are to the Infor- rel of Form all or antity from W-9 in the IRE must obtain yo the ior social security Ng, acoption tappage on runnout reportable of tanks, but reportable of	ertify that: I form is my correct taxpayer identification num withihoiding because: (a) I am exempt from b ject to backup withihoiding as a result of a faile p withihoiding; and r U.S. person (defined below); and d on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt ou must cross out item 2 above if you have be port all interest and dividends on your tax retur- bandomment of secured property, cancellation in interest and dividends, you are not required main Revenue Code unless otherwise noted. In about developments affecting Form W-9 (such asset i) is at www.iz.gov/red. Inequestion number (CIM) number (SSM), individual to file an information for one interesting form (IM) number (SSM), individual to file an information for one intermation number (TM) number (SSM), individual to file an information for one intermation number (TM) number (SSM), individual to file an information in an information number (CIM) of on an information number (CIM) of an an information number (CIM) of an an information number (CIM) is the telewing: or paid)	ackup withholding, or (b) I have are to report all interest or divid pt from FATCA reporting is cor- en notified by the IRS that you m. For real estate transactions, of debt, contributions to an ind to sign the certification, but you Data > • Form 1008 (home mortgage in (auton) • Form 1008 (home mortgage in (auton) • Form 1008 (appatient on at Use Form 4.9 only if you are provide your consult if you are to backup withholding. See Why By signing the filled-out form, 1, Cartify that the TIN you are to be issued). 2. Cartify that you are not sub 3, Claim assemption from back applicable, you are also cartify	not been r ends, or (c) nect. are current item 2 doo ividual rets u must pro- tonant, 1090 dondorment a U.S. perso lo the reque if is beckep i you: giving is co you: giving is co you: as a lo the reque	notified by the internal Revenue the IRS has notified me that is try subject to backup withholdin es not apply. For mortgage rement arrangement (IPA), and vide your correct TIN. See the 5-Li (student loan interest), 1096-T t of secured property) on (including a resident alier), to aster with a TIN, you might be subje withholding? on page 2. most (or you are waiting for a number up withholding, or ing if you are a U.S. exempt payee. U.S. parson, your allocatie share of
der pe The n: I am n Servic no lon I am a The FA retriceal cause nerally, tructio gn erest p nerally, tructio erest p nerally retriceal to no erest p retriceal truction retriceal to no erest p retriceal to no erest p retriceal truction retriceal to no erest p retriceal to no erest p erest p	railies of perjury, 1 c umber shown on this of subject to backup e (IRS) that I am sub ger subject to backup ILS. citizen or other TCA code(s) entend tion instructions. Yi you have tailed to re- add, acquisition or at to an page 3. Bigenture of U.S. parson > Tal Instruction tenances are to the inter- rel finances and the inter- rel or antity (form W-9 or the IRS music obtain your to your excisit obtain your to pour excisit obtain to the IRS music obtain your to pour excisit obtain to the IRS music obtain your to your excisit obtain your on number (EIM), to report a mount reportative of turks, but are not timited to HYT (ritareat sumed to -DV (dividends, inclu-	ertify that: I form is my correct taxpayer identification num withihoiding because: (a) I am exempt from b ject to backup withihoiding as a result of a faile p withihoiding; and r U.S. person (defined below); and I on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt ou must cross out item 2 above if you have be port all interest and dividends on your tax retu- bandomment of secured property, cancellation in interest and dividends, you are not required mal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted. In about developments attacting Form W-9 (such asse it) is at www.in.gov/fw9. Inspector taxpayer identification number (TH) number (SSH), institution number (ITH) number (SSH), institution number (ITH) requestion number (ATH), or employer of on an information number (ATH), or employer of on an information number (SH), institution is the thready of the second pack to n an information number (SH), or property or paid) ding those from stocks or mutual fundis	ackup withholding, or (b) I have are to report all interest or divid pt from FATCA reporting is con- en notified by the IRS that you. m. For real estate transactions, of debt, contributions to an ind- to sign the certification, but you Date > • Form 1008-0 (canceled debt) • F	not been r ends, or (c) rect. are current Item 2 doi litem 2 doi widual retuint of the request of the request o	notified by the internal Revenue) the IRS has notified me that is by subject to backup withholdin is not apply. For mortgage rement arrangement (IRA), and wide your correct TIN. See the 5-4 (student loan interest), 1026-T t of secured property) on (including a resident alian), to aster with a TIN, you might be subje withholding? on page 2. mod (or you are watting for a numbe op withholding, or ing if you are a U.S. exampt payee. U.S. person, your adocates share of tealmants in of subject to the
der pe The nr. I am n Servic no lon I am a The FA retifical cause are erest p nerally, truction orest p nerally, truction are erest p erest p	railies of perjury, I c umber shown on this of subject to backup e (IRS) that I am sub ger subject to backu U.S. citizen or other TCA code(s) entend tion Instructions. Yi you have failed to re- aid, acquisition or at , payments other tha- ns on page 3. Bigneture of U.S. person > ral Instruction transces are to the inter relegements, informatio on anacted after we re- te of Form at or entity from W-Br to pour excisit security N), adoption taxpayer or number (DM, to report aude, but ere not immize 00-MT (riterant series)	ertify that: I form is my correct taxpayer identification num withihoiding because: (a) I am exempt from b ject to backup withihoiding as a result of a faile p withihoiding; and r U.S. person (defined below); and d on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt ou must cross out item 2 above if you have be port all interest and dividends on your tax retur- bandomment of secured property, cancellation in interest and dividends, you are not required main Revenue Code unless otherwise noted. In about developments affecting Form W-9 (such asset i) is at www.iz.gov/red. Inequestion number (CIM) number (SSM), individual to file an information for one interestion return. Examples of information in an information number (CIM) requestion number (CIM) or on an information number (CIM) or an information number.	ackup withholding, or (b) I have are to report all interest or divid pt from FATCA reporting is cor- en notified by the IRS that you m. For real estate transactions, of debt, contributions to an ind to sign the certification, but you Data H • Form 1008 (home mortgage in (bation) •	not been r ends, or (c) nect. are current ltem 2 doi lividual rets u must pro- toract, 1090 normal pro- toraction to share to social to back to back pro- you: giving is cor- locate to back to back or so share of on anterso on on the social of the social of the social social of the social social of the social social to back to the social of the LS. trade or on share of on the social of the social of the social of the social of the social of the so	notified by the internal Revenue the IRS has notified me that is try subject to backup withholdin es not apply. For mortgage rement arrangement (IPA), and vide your correct TIN. See the 5-Li (student loan interest), 1096-T t of secured property) on (including a resident alier), to aster with a TIN, you might be subje withholding? on page 2. most (or you are waiting for a number up withholding, or ing if you are a U.S. exempt payee. U.S. parson, your allocatie share of
der pe The nx I am n Servic no lon I am a The FA thinda cause i srest p nerally, truction gn srest poerally, truction gn srest poerally, truction gn srest poerally, truction solution setting truction solution setting truction solution setting	railies of perjury, I c umber shown on this of subject to backup e (IRS) that I am sub ger subject to backu U.S. citizen or other TCA code(s) entend tion Instructions. Yi you have failed to re- aid, acquisition or at , payments other tha- ns on page 3. Bigneture of U.S. person > ral Instruction transces are to the inter relegements, informatio on anacted after we re- te of Form at or entity from W-Br to pour excisit security N), adoption taxpayer or number (DM, to report aude, but ere not immize 00-MT (riterant series)	ertify that: I form is my correct taxpayer identification num withihoiding because: (a) I am exempt from b ject to backup withihoiding as a result of a faile p withihoiding; and r U.S. person (defined below); and d on this form (if any) indicating that I am exem our must cross out them 2 above if you have be port all interest and dividends on your tax retu- bandomment of secured property, cancellation in interest and dividends, you are not required mal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted. In about developments affecting Form W-9 (such asset i) is at www.in.govirw0. Inspection number (TM) number (SSM), individual tapping identification for on an internation number (TM) number (SSM), individual tapping identification dentification number (ATM), or employer ort on an internation number (TM) is tablewing: or paid) ding those from stocks or mutual fundig of income, prizes, awards, or grose proceedig) and sake and cortain other transactions by	ackup withholding, or (b) I have are to report all interest or divid pt from FATCA reporting is cor- en notified by the IRS that you m. For real estate transactions, of debt, contributions to an ind to sign the certification, but you Data H • Form 1008 (home mortgage in (bation) •	not been r ends, or (c) nect. are current ltem 2 doi lividual rets u must pro- toract, 1090 normal pro- toraction to share to social to back to back pro- you: giving is cor- locate to back to back or so share of on anterso on on the social of the social of the social social of the social social of the social social to back to the social of the LS. trade or on share of on the social of the social of the social of the social of the social of the so	notified by the internal Revenue the IRS has notified me that is the IRS has notified me that is the IRS has notified me that is the solid apply. For mortgage rement arrangement (IRA), and vide your correct TIN. See the 5-L (student ican interest), 1095-T to secured property) on (including a rasident alian), to aster with a TM, you might be subje withholding? on page 2. mod (or you are waiting for a number oup withholding, or ing if you are U.S. exempt payes. U.S. parse, your allocates share of trainable y indicating that you:



ne of purchaser, firm or egency		
ress (Street & number, P.O. Bax or Route number)	Phone (Area code and number)	
, State, ZIP code		
, the purchaser named above, claim a tems described below or on the attac	an exemption from payment of sales and use taxes (for the purchase of tax shed order or invoice) from:	cable
Seller.		
College -		
Street address:	_City, State, ZIP code:	
Description of Items to be purchased or or	in the attached order or invoice:	
-		
_		
Purchaser claims this exemption for the fo	bliowing reason:	
Purchaser claims this exemption for the fo	bliowing reason:	
Purchaser claims this exemption for the fo	ollowing reason:	
Purchaser claims this exemption for the fo	bliowing reason:	
Purchaser claims this exemption for the fo	bliowing reason:	
Purchaser claims this exemption for the fo	bliowing reason:	
Purchaser claims this exemption for the fo	bliowing reason:	
understand that I will be liable for payme	ent of all state and local sales or use taxes which may become due for failure to com	ply with
	ent of all state and local sales or use taxes which may become due for failure to com	ply with
understand that I will be liable for payme he provisions of the Tax Code and/or all a understand that it is a criminal offense to p	ent of all state and local sales or use taxes which may become due for failure to com applicable law. give an exemption certificate to the selier for taxable items that I know, at the time of pu	rchase,
understand that I will be liable for payme he provisions of the Tax Code and/or all a understand that it is a criminal offense to g vill be used in a manner other than that exp	ent of all state and local sales or use taxes which may become due for failure to com applicable law. give an exemption certificate to the seller for taxable items that I know, at the time of pu pressed in this certificate, and depending on the amount of tax evaded, the offense ma	rchase,
understand that I will be liable for payme he provisions of the Tax Code and/or all a understand that it is a criminal offense to p	ent of all state and local sales or use taxes which may become due for failure to com applicable law. give an exemption certificate to the seller for taxable items that I know, at the time of pu pressed in this certificate, and depending on the amount of tax evaded, the offense ma	rchase,
understand that I will be liable for payme he provisions of the Tax Code and/or all a understand that it is a criminal offense to g vill be used in a manner other than that exp	ent of all state and local sales or use taxes which may become due for failure to com applicable law. give an exemption certificate to the seller for taxable items that I know, at the time of pu pressed in this certificate, and depending on the amount of tax evaded, the offense ma	rchase

Sales and Use Tax "Exemption Numbers" or "Tax Exempt" Numbers do not exist.

This certificate should be furnished to the supplier. Do not send the completed certificate to the Comptroller of Public Accounts.



DBE/ Minority/ Small Business, Certification Disclosures

Alamo Area Council of Governments (AACOG) is committed to the healthy and responsible growth of our Disadvantaged, Small & Minority Business Enterprises in and around the Alamo City. These service providers are a major driving force for the Alamo, South and Central Texas Region economy. We are unified in our requirement to identifying, and in utilizing these Agency approved organizations.

For more information regarding DBE certification, please visit DBE link provided: https://sctrcadotorg.wordpress.com/small-minority-woman-and-veteran-owned-business-enterprise/

We also would like to provide information regarding a partner Agency within the Alamo Area that can certify your organization in and around the South Central Texas Region (SCTRCA). Please visit their SCTRCA link provided regarding certification:

https://sctrcadotorg.wordpress.com/small-minority-woman-and-veteran-owned-business-enterprise/

For AACOG's certification disclosure within our federal guidelines, please identify any of the applicable certifications your organization falls under, and provide us with a copy of your Agency certificate:

African American Business Enterprise (AABE) Certification- Complete Certification Application

A business structure owned, operated, managed, and controlled by an African American minority group member(s) who has at least 51% ownership.

Asian American Business Enterprise (ABE) Certification- Complete Certification Application

A business structure owned, operated, managed, and controlled by an Asian American minority group member(s) who has at least 51% ownership.

Disabled Individual Business Enterprise (DIBE) Certification- Complete Certification Application

A business structure that is at least 51% owned, operated and controlled by a disabled individual Disabled individual means a person (a) with one or more disabilities as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and amendments thereto (for purposes of applicability under the certification statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations governing the State of Texas).

Emerging Small Business Enterprise (ESBE) Certification- Complete Certification Application

An SBE eligible business structure for the purpose of making a profit, which is independently owned and operated by individuals legally residing in, or that are citizens of, the United States or its territories, whose annual revenues and numbers of employees are no greater than 25% of the small business size standards for its industry as established by the U.S. Small Business Administration.

Hispanic Business Enterprise (HABE) Certification- Complete Certification Application

A business structure owned, operated, managed and controlled by a Hispanic American minority group member(s) who has at least 51%.

Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) Certification-Complete Certification Application

A business structure that is owned, operated, managed and controlled by an ethnic minority group member(s) who has at least 51%.

Native American Business Enterprise (NABE) Certification- Complete Certification Application

A business structure owned, operated, managed and controlled by a Native American minority group member(s) who has at least 51 percent ownership. The Native American group member(s) must have operational and managerial control, interest in capital, expertise and earning commensurate with the percentage of ownership and legally residing in or are citizens of the United States or its territories; or (2) A business structure owned, operated and controlled by a Native American minority group member(s) who has at least 51% ownership and satisfies the Native American member status.

Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Certification- Complete Certification Application

A business structure that is formed with the purpose of making a profit, which is independently owned and operated and which meets the United States Small Business Administration (SBA) size standard for a small business (See <u>http://sba.gov/size</u> click "table".)

Veteran-Owned Business Enterprise (VBE) Certification- Complete Certification Application

A business structure owned, operated, managed and controlled by an individual who served in the United States Armed Forces, and who was discharged or released under conditions other than dishonorable. *Please note: This certification type should not be confused with the Service Disabled Veteran designation available through the Small Business Administration.*

Woman-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE) Certification- Complete Certification Application

A business structure that is owned, operated and controlled by one or more women who have a total of at least 51% or more ownership.

Sincerely,

Debbie Ugarte

Debbie Ugarte Alamo Area Council of Governments Contracts & Procurement Manager Appendix A

Service Definitions for Area Agencies on Aging



Texas Department of Aging and Disability Services

Fiscal Year 2025

SERVICES

CONGREGATE MEAL

A hot or other appropriate meal served to an older person who is eligible in a congregate setting.

Service Name	Service Definition	Service Unit and Description	Method of Service Provision and Approval Requirement to Provide Service Directly	Reimbursement Methodology	SPR ⁱ and OAA ⁱⁱ Reporting Requirements	QPR ^{III} and LBB ^{IV} Reporting Requirements	Allowable Funds
Congregate Meal	A hot or other appropriate meal served to an older person who is eligible in a congregate setting. (AAAPPM Chapter F)	One Meal	This service may be provided by a subrecipient of the AAA or authorized by a care coordinator on behalf of an eligible person for purchase through a contractor. If requirements are met, this service may also be authorized through Data Management. Approval Required: Yes	 Fixed Unit Rate per Meal served 	SPR • "Congregate Meal" • Unduplicated – Intake • Number of unduplicated at high nutritional risk • Nutrition Risk Assessment • Units – One meal	QPR • Units • Unduplicated persons count LBB Key Performance Measure • Number of units • Cost per unit	 Title III-C1 Disaster Relief as approved by HHSC State General Revenue NSIP [Note: NSIP to be used for the purchase of food only. No units should be applied to NSIP funding.]

Nutrition	The provision of information to an older	One Session per person	This service may be	 Fixed Unit Rate 	SPR	QPR	Title III-C1
Education	person to promote nutritional well-		provided directly,	per Session	 "Nutrition 	Units	Title III-C2
	being and to delay the onset of adverse	A session is counted for each	provided by a		Education"	 Estimated persons 	State General Revenue
	health conditions resulting from poor	eligible person attending a	subrecipient of the AAA,		• Units – One session	count	
	nutritional health or sedentary	nutrition education session which	or authorized by a care		per person		
	behavior. (AAAPPM Section F-1330)	may be conducted in a group or	coordinator on behalf of				
		one-on-one.	an eligible person for				
			purchase through a				
			contractor.				
			Approval Required: No				

HOME DELIVERED MEAL

Hot, cold, frozen, dried, canned, fresh, or supplemental food (with a satisfactory storage life) delivered to a person who is eligible in their place of residence. (AAAPPM Chapter F; Section D-1040 and Section D-1070). CNE is required.

Service Name	Service Definition	Service Unit and Description	Method of Service Provision and Approval Requirement to Provide Service Directly	Reimbursement Methodology	SPR ⁱ and OAA ⁱⁱ Reporting Requirements	QPR ⁱⁱⁱ and LBB ^{iv} Reporting Requirements	Allowable Funds
Meals	or supplemental food (with a satisfactory storage life) delivered to a person who is eligible in their place of residence. (AAAPPM Chapter F; Section D-1040 and Section D-1070). A CNE is required. (AAAPPM Section D-1040)		provided by a subrecipient of the AAA or authorized by a care coordinator on behalf of an eligible person for purchase through a contractor. If requirements are met, this service may also be authorized through Data	per Meal served	 "Home-Delivered Meal" Number of unduplicated at high nutritional risk Nutrition Risk Assessment Unduplicated – Intake 	 Units Unduplicated persons count LBB Key Performance Measure Number of Units Cost per Unit 	 Title III-E Disaster Relief as approved by HHSC State General Revenue NSIP [Note: NSIP to be used for the purchase of food only. No units should be applied to NSIP funding.]
			Management.		 Units – One meal OAA ADL/IADL CNE with score 20 or greater, regardless of age 		

Appendix B

Texas Health and Human Services

Uniform Rate Negotiation Workboo	ok/Budget
Federal Contract Period:	10-01-24 / 09-30-25

Nutrition Providers Logal Rusiness Name:	
Mailing Address:	
Mailing Address.	
Zin Codo:	
Zip Gode Dhana Numberi	
E-IIIali Address.	
Contact Name:	
Nutrition Providers website address:	
Did this Nutrition provider complete a rate setting workbook last year? If Yes, what was the provider name listed on the workbook?	Either Yes or No must be selected
Is the Provider a AAA Provider? Either Yes or No must be If Yes, select the AAA Name:	
If Yes, contact name at AAA:	
If Yes, is it a contract or subrecipient?	
Is the Provider a HHS Contracted Community Services Provider?	Either Yes or No must be selected
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	A
If Yes, select the HHS Region Number:	
If Yes, enter the HHS contract number	
Service Delivery Information Home Delivered Meals	
Does this Nutrition provider serve home delivered meals paid for by HHS or the A	AA? Either Yes or No must be selected
Total number of home delivered meal routes for this provider:	
Total number of meal preparation sites used by this provider:	
Does the provider make home delivered meals available at least 5 days a week at	nd 250 days a year?
Congregate Meals	
Does this Nutrition provider serve congregate meals paid for by the AAA?	Either Yes or No must be selected
Total number of meal preparation sites used by this provider:	
Total number of meal sites used by this provider:	_

Does the provider make congregate meals available at least 5 days a week and 250 days a year?